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- Saslow Lufkin & Buggy, LLp

Accounting - Tax - Advisory

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Trustees of
Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates:

We have aundited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and
Affiliates (the Organization), a Connecticut not-for-profit, non-stock corporation, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheets as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets (deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the audifor considers infernal control relevant to the Organization’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates as of September 30, 2014 and
2013, and the results of its consolidated changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the vears then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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- Saslow Lufkin & Buggy, 1ip

Accounting - Tax - Advisory

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Organization will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Organization has
suffered recutring losses from operations and has a net working capital deficiency. The Organization is in default
with its Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA)/Wells Fargo mortgage note. This has caused the
outstanding balance of the mortgage note, which amounted to $19,375,475 as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, to
be reclassified to current debt, as the debt is now callable by the lender. In addition, the Organization is in violation
of certain covenants for 2014 and 2013 with TD Bank under one of its line of credit agreements. The Organization
did not receive a waiver for these violations as of the date of this report. These conditions raise substantial doubt
about the QOrganization’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are
described in Note 1. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from
the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Report on Supplemental Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplemental consolidating information listed within the Table of Contents is presented for
purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows of the individual entities, and it is not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the individual entities. The consolidating information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidaied
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the consolidating
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

January 13, 2015




Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates

Consolidated Balance Sheets
September 30, 2014 and 2013

Assets
Cuirent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets limited as to use, current portion
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $1,154,424 in 2014 and $1,398,952 in 2013
Pledges receivable, current perticn
Other receivables
Tnventory
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion:
Deonor restricted investments
Board designated investments .
Investments restricted under debt agreements
Total assets limiled as to use, net of current portion

Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets:
Pledges receivable, long-term
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Investments
Deposits
Mortgage acquisition costs, net
Due from affiliate - Auxiliary
Totat other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit)
Current Habilities:

Notes and bonds payable, current portion
Capital fease obligations, current portion
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest expense
Lines of credit
Funds held in trust
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Notes and bonds payable, net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of cuzrent portion
Accrued pension liability

Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted deficit
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2014 2013
190,802  § 252,872
564,946 457,002

3,892,409 4,343,649
78,060 120,840
384,426 521,962
268,622 256,397
482,722 413,132
5,861,987 6,366,754
2,194,135 2,207,894
7,097 228,198
1,148,145 1,220252
3,349,377 3,656,344
16,446,109 17,904,251
. 30,002
137,660 115,352
6,424,344 6,005,189
207,869 207,869
970,714 831,470
23,716 16,945
7 764,297 7,206,827
33,421,770 § 15,134,176
20,269,514  § 19,756,903
28,353 15423
6,779,077 6,724,643
1,965,338 966,590
4,923,961 4,779,722
564,946 457,931
113,370 613
34,644,559 32,701,827
15,295,000 15,689,725
105,944 40,229
2,757,186 2,130,115
52,502,689 50,561,806
(21,831,060) (17,959,975)
141,828 243,992
2,308,313 2,288,263
{19,380,919) (13,427,720
33,421,770 § 35,134,176




Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (Deficit}
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating revenues:
Net patient scrvice revenues
Home health care revenue
Adult day health center services
Net patient revenues
Provision for bad debts

Net patient revenues less provision for bad debts

Member services and rental income - Hoffman SummerWood Community
Grants
Other income
Net assets relcased from restrictions used for operations
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Nursing services
Administration
Health benefiis
Nutriticnal services
Medical services
Building operations
Depreciation and amortization
Environmental services
Phammacy services
Provider tax
Interest expense
Rehabilitation services
Development
Social services
Life enrichment services
Health information management

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Non-operating gains {losses):
Interest and dividend income and distributions
Net realized gains on investments
Change in cash surrender value of life insurance
Gifts, bequests and special events
Investment fees
Total non-operating gains

Deficiency of revenues under expenses

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2014 2013
38,651,700  § 39,304,774
6,135,685 7,055,931
457,619 544,770
45,245,004 46,905,475
(398,427) (366,257)
44,846,577 46,539,218
4,785,469 4,157,367
208,255 191,740
351,920 443,446
189,587 544,255
50,381,308 51,876,026
19,854,489 19,669,966
10,359,449 9.731,732
5,425,609 6,214,571
3,796,935 3,940,232
3,018,582 3,274,799
1,977,203 2,014,347
1,833,548 1,832,543
1,769,611 1,719,118
1,681,179 1,643,820
1,460,018 1,433,893
1,320,183 1,335,628
1,069,496 1,097,566
554,371 529,075
516,185 481,025
377,369 333,534
164,037 172,891
35,178,264 55,424,740
(4,796,456) (3,548,714)
211,344 192,211
1,374,139 241,553
22,308 21,333
685,426 930,110
(75,317) (73,991)
2,217,900 1,311,216
(2,578,556) § (2,237,498)




Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (Deficit) (continued)
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Unrestricted net assets (deficit):
Deficiency of revenues under expenses
Net unrealized (losses) gains on investments
Net asset transfer
Pension related changes other than net periodic pension cost
Change in unrestricted net assets (deficit)

Temporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions
Net asset transfer
Interest and dividend incoine
Net realized and unrealized (losses) gains
Net assets released from restrictions
Change in temporarily restricted pet assets

Permanenily restricted net assets:
Contributions
Change in permanently restricted net assets
Change in net assets (deficit)

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year

Net assets (deficit), end of year

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5

2014 2013
$ (2,578,556) § (2,237,498)
(764,142) 449,637
(35,696) -
(492,691} 1,902,140
(3,871,085) 114,279
22,758 15,059
35,696 -
33,178 37,178
(4,209) 114,418
(189,587) (544,255)
(102,164) (377,600}
20,050 1,935
20,050 1,935
(3,953,199) (261,386)
(15,427,720) (15,166.334)
$ (19.380,919) § (15,427,720)




Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets (deficit)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets (deficit) to
net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Bad debt expense )
Change in cash surrender value of life insurance policy
Net gain on investments
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Other receivables
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Daue from/to affiliates, net

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and accrued interest

Deferred revenue
Accrued pension liability
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from Investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net proceeds from investments and assets limited as to use
Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance (repayments) of notes and bonds payable
Principal paymends on capital lease obligations
Net change in lines of credit
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest

Non-cash financing activity, capital lease obligation

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

6

2014 2013

5 (3,953,199) § (261,386)
1,833,548 1,832,543

398,427 366,257
(22,308) (21,333)
(605,788) (805,608)

52,813 62,303

72,782 85,960

137,536 36,015
(12,225) (13,551)
(69,590) (44,099)

(6,765) 7,999
1,053,182 (31,259
112,755 (3,404)
627,071 (1,782,704
(381,761) (572,267
(420,693) (305,580}

493,571 1,536,614

72,878 1,231,034

117,886 (449,626)

(15,312) (34,270)
144,239 (23,188)
246,813 (507,084)

(62,070) 151,683

252,872 101,189

$ 190,802  §. 252,872
$ 373817 & 373,743
5 93,957 % 22,272




Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended Sepiember 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 1 - General

Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates (the Organization) consists of the following entities: Hebrew
Home and Hospital, Incorporated (the FHome), Hebrew Community Services, Inc. (HCS), Hebrew Life Choices,
Inc. (Hoffman SummerWood Community), Hebrew Health Care Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation), Connecticut
Geriatric Specialty Group, PC (CGSG) and Hebrew Health Care, Inc. (HHC). The entities, which are located in
West Hartford, Connecticut, are incorporated as non-sectarian, not-for-profit organizations under the Non-Stock
Corporation Act of the State of Connecticut and provide services to aged residents of the greater Hartford
community, with the exception of CGSG, which is a for-profit organization.

Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated is the sole corporate member of ecach of the IHome, HCS, Hoffman
SummerWood Community and the Foundation while one of its staff members serves as a Board member of
CGSG’s five member Board. Tt provides administrative support services for the related exempt organizations, as
well as soliciting and receiving gifts, grants and contributions, and making gifts, grants and contributions to the
related exempt organizations.

The Home operates a 322-bed skilled nursing and chronic disease hospital facility. HCS provides in-home health
care services, hospice services, assisted living services and operates one adult day health center. Hoffman
SummerWood Community operates a 106-unit assisted living facility.

The Foundation holds board-designated funds, temporarily restricted funds and permanently restricted endowment
funds on behalf of the other affiliates within the Organization.

CGSG began operations in fiscal year 2008, and is a for-profit medical practice, owned by one physician
shareholder, whose purpose is to render professional medical services for the Home.

Going Concern - As shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Organization has suffered
recurring losses from operations and has a net working capital deficiency. In addition, the Organization is in
default with its Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA)/Wells Fargo mortgage note. This has caused
the outstanding balance of the mortgage note, which amounted to $19,375,475 as of September 30, 2014 and 2013,
to be reclassified to current debt, as the debt is now callable by the lender. In addition, the Organization is in
violation of certain covenants for 2014 and 2013 with TD Bank under one of its line of credit agreements. The
Organization did not receive a waiver for these violations as of the date of this report. These factors raise
substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management is in the process of
renegotiating its mortgage debt with the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is currently
anticipating a March 2015 closing dafe. In addition, as part of its fiscal year 2015 budgeting process, the
Organization implemented $2,000,000 in cost saving initiatives through changes in its staff benefit programs.
Management also entered into the cost savings agreement with Hartford HealthCare Corporation (Hartford HC)
described below.

Clinical Affiliation and Consulfting Services Agreement with Hartford HealthCare - On March 26, 2014, the
Organization entered into a Clinical Affiliation and Consulting Services Agreement (the Affiliation or Agreement)
with Hartford HC, under which the Organization has a role in coordinating, managing and providing care for
patients of the Hartford HealthCare Accountable Care Organization, Inc. (HHC ACO). Through the Affiliation, the
Organization will aim to develop a relationship with the other parties in the HHC ACO, which will advance shared
goals of delivering high-quality, coordinated and cost-effective chronic acute, post-acute, and long-term care
services to HHC ACO patients and other patients. This Affiliation is aiming to create operational efficiencies and
cost savings by providing the Organization with access to the expertise and consulting capabilities currently
available from Hartford HC and its affiliates and subsidiaries. Also, under the Agreement, Hartford HC provides
certain consulting and marketing services.




Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 1 - General (continued)

Furthermore, in order to provide assurance to improve the Organization’s operations and reduce the cost of care,
Hartford HC has included a performance guarantee under this Agreement for the first two years of the five year
term of the Agreement. As part of its services under this Agreement, Hartford HC makes recommendations to the
Organization in regards to operating expense reduction initiatives for the Home and certain revenue cycle
improvements to the Home’s existing revenues. Following the end of each year of the Agreement in the first two
years, the parties will perform an accounting of the operating expense reductions and revenue cycle initiatives, as
defined in the Agreement. To the extent the value of these initiatives is less than $1,250,000 in any of the first two
years, Hartford HC will make a payment to the Organization equal to the difference (the “Shortfall Payment™). As
part of this agreement, Hartford HC’s duties and responsibilities include the provision of hospitalists professional
services at the Home. The costs of these professional services, net of professional billings, are considered a part of
the $1,250,000 expense reduction initiative. It has been further agreed that the provision of these professional
services will continue through the term of the Agreement.

Hartford HC has advanced $500,000 to the Organization under the Agreement, without interest, which has been
evidenced by a promissory note (the Advance). The amount of the Shortfall Payment for the year ended March 26,
2015 will be offset by the Advance. If the Advance exceeds the Shortfall Payment, the Organization will repay the
remaining amount of the Advance to Hartford HC in equal monthly payments over a period of time mutually
agreed upon by the parties not to exceed the term of the Agreement.

In compensation for the services provided under the Agreement, the Organization will pay an amount equal to 1%
of the annual operating revenues of the Organization, not to exceed $600,000 in any year (the “Consulting Fee”).
The Consulting Fee is paid in equal monthly installments. Hartford HC has waived payment of the Consulting Fee
for the first two years of the Agreement. Thereafter, the annual compensation for the consulting services will only
become payable if the Organization has achieved an operating margin of 2%.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as promulgated by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates. Al significant
inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and related footnotes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Company classifies certain securities with original maturity dates of three
months or less from the date of purchase as cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are comprised of money market
funds. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insures cash balances up to $250,000 per depositor, per
bank. Amounts in excess of the FDIC limit are unminsured. It is the Organization’s policy to monitor the financial
strength of the banks that hold its deposits on an ongoing basis. During the normal course of business, the
Organization maintains cash balances in excess of the FDIC insurance limit.

Money market funds are not insured by the FDIC and are not a risk-free investment. Money market funds invest in
a varjety of instruments including mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. Although a money market fund
seeks to preserve its one dollar per share value, it is possible that a money market fund’s value can decrease below
one dolar per share.




Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Aecounting Policies (continued)

Aceounts Receivable - Patient accounts receivable where a third-party payer is responsible for paying the amount
are carried at a net amount determined by the original charge for the service provided, less an estimate made for
contractual adjustments or discounts provided to third-party payers.

Patient accounts receivable due directly from the residents are carried at the original charge for the service provided
less amounts covered by third-party payers and less an estimated allowance for doubtful receivables. Management
determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts and by historical experience
applied to an aging of accounts. Patient receivables are written off in the provision for bad debts when deemed
uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded as a reduction of the provision for bad
debts when received.

Assets Limited As To Use - Assets limited as to use include assets held by trustees under indenture agreements,
funds held in trost, security deposits and donor restricted funds. Assets limited as to use that are required to meet
current liabilities are reported as current assets.

Mortgage Acquisition Costs - Mortgage acquisition costs represent financing costs related fo mortgage and bond
financing. These costs are being amortized over the life of the bonds. As of September 30 2014, the Home was
waiting on approval for the proposed restructuring of its Government National Mortgage Association
(GNMA)/Wells Fargo mortgage note. The refinancing costs associated with this proposal amounted to $155,841
for the year ended September 30, 2014 and have not been amortized.

Investments - The Organization is invested in a pooled fund held and managed by the Jewish Community
Foundation of Greater Hartford, Inc. (JCF), which includes investments in non-marketable securities. These
investments are recorded at fair value as reported by the JCF.

Non-marketable securities in general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit and overall market
volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of alternative investment securities will
occur in the near term and those changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated balance
sheets and consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets (deficit). Management has reviewed the
risk associated with these investments and has determined it is not material to the Organization as of September 30,
2014 and 2013.

Marketable securities with readily determinable fair values are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance
sheets. Gains and losses on investments are reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their
use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law.

Other Than Temporary Impairments on Investments - The Organization accounts for ether than temporary
impairments in accordance with FASB ASC 320, “Investments - Debt and Eguity Securifies” and continually
reviews its securities for impairment conditions, which could indicate that an other than temporary decline in
market value has occurred. In conducting this review, numerous factors are considered, which include specific
information pertaining to an individual company or a particular industry, general market conditions that reflect
prospects for the economy as a whole and the ability and infent to hold securities until recovery. The carrying value
of investments is reduced to its estimated realizable value if a decline in fair value is considered to be other than
temporary. There were no impairment losses recorded in 2014 or 2013.




Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment - Property, plant and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Equipment
under capital lease obligations is amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter period of the lease term or
the estimated life of the equipment. Depreciation and amortization are provided over the estimated useful life of
each class of depreciable assets and are computed using the straight-line method, as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Building improvements 10-25 years
Furnishings and equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Expenditures for major renewals and improvements are capitalized, while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are expensed as incurred.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 410, “4sset Retirement and Environmental Obligations”, which requires that
a liability be recorded for the fair value of an asset retirement obligation specific to certain legal environmental
obligations. The recording of a liability is required if such conditions exist and the obligation can be reasonably
estimated. As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization is unaware of any such obligations. The
Organization will recognize a liability in the period in which they become aware of such liability and sufficient
information is available to reasonably estimate the fair value.

Workers® Compensation, Professional and General Liability Insurance - The Organization maintains workers’
compensation, medical malpractice and general liability insurance policies. The provision for estimated
- malpractice claims includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not
reported. GAAP requires that health care entities present insurance claim liabilities on a gross basis and not net
insurance recoveries against the related claim liabilities. Accordingly, the Organization recorded $332,233 and
$424,056 under the captions “Other receivables” and “Accounts payable and accrued expenses™ in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, representing the
Organization’s estimate of liabilities and recoveries for certain workers’ compensation and general liability claims.
Thete are no known medical malpractice liability claims to record as of September 30, 2014 and 2013.

Net Assets - The Organization’s consolidated financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of
FASB ASC 958, “Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations”, which requires the Organization to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net
assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. A description of the three net asset
classes follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit) - Unrestricted net assets (deficit) represent the portion of net
assets (deficit) of the Organization that is neither permanently restricted nor temporarily restricted
by donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Temporarily restricted net assets represent contributions and
other inflows of assets whose use by the Organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations
that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the
Organization pursuant to those stipulations.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Permanently restricted net assets represent contributions and
other inflows of assets whose use by the Organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations
that neither expire by passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the
Organization.

10




Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 36, 2014 and 2013

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenses - The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets
(deficit) includes deficiency of revenues under expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are excluded
from deficiency of revenues under expenses, consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses
on investments on other than trading securities, assets released from restrictions for purchase of property, plant and
equipment and certain changes in pension liabilities.

Revenue Recognition - Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from residents,
third-party payers and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers.

Revenue received under third-party payer agreements is subject to audit and retroactive adjustments. Provisions for
estimated third-party payer settlements are provided in the period the related services are rendered. Differences
between the estimated amounts accrued and interim and final seftlements are reported in operations in the year of
the settlement.

The payments received under the Medicaid and Medicare programs are less than the cost of providing the services.
The differences between the costs incurred fo provide services and reimbursements of these programs were
approximately $5,516,084 in 2014 and $5,500,370 in 2013.

HCS’s adult day health centers are funded by various state programs at agreed upon rates and from individuals or
their responsible party at HCS published rates. Hoffman SummerWood Community is funded through private
member service fees and rent. CGSG is funded through third-party payer agreements and a contract with the Home
for the provision of medical direction and services. HHC’s revenue consists of administrative fees from the Home,
Hoffman SummerWood Community, HCS and CGSG and is eliminated in consolidation. Gifts received by HHC
from donors are granted to the Affiliates and the intercompany donations are eliminated in consolidation.

Contributions - The Organization follows the requirements of GAAP for accounting for contributions received and
contributions made., Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenue in the
period when the donor makes the promise to give. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they
become unconditional, that is, at the time when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at fair value using an appropriate rate commensurate with
the risk involved. Amortization of discount is recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with
donor-imposed restrictions, if any, on the contribution. An allowance for uncollectible contributions receivable is
provided based upon management’s consideration of such factors as prior collection history, type of contribution
and nature of the fundraising activity.

Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the same year as received are reported as
revenes of the unrestricted net asset class. Contributions received with donor imposed restrictions that are met
subsequent to the year in which they are received are reported as revenues of the temporarily restricted net asset
class when they are received. A reclassification fo unrestricted net assets is made to reflect the expiration of such
restrictions in the year the restriction is met.

Contributions of property, plant and equipment without donor stipulations concerning the use of such long-lived
assets are reported as revenues of the unrestricted net asset class. Contributions of cash or other assets to be used to
acquire property, plant and equipment with donor stipulations are reported as revenues of the temporarily restricted
net asset class; the restrictions are considered to be released at the time of acquisition of such long-lived assets.
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Hebrew Health Care, Incorperated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 36, 2014 and 2013

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Donated Services - The Home benefits from significant volunteer services provided by professionals and
individuals in the community. The Home estimates that they received the approximate value of $229,623 and
$254,474 of volunteer services from the community during each of the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The majority of these services do not qualify for recording in the statements of operations and
changes in net assets (deficit) under GAAP and are therefore not reported in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets (deficit).

Advertising - The Organization’s policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred. Advertising costs were
$277,240 and $191,895 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Income Tax Status - Each entity, with the exception of CGSG is qualified under Section 501 (c¢)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and is exempt from federal and state income taxes. CGSG is a Qualified Personal Service
Corporation and as such is subject to a 35% federal income tax rate.

The QOrganization accounts for uncertain tax positions with provisions of FASB ASC 740, “/ncome Taxes”, which
provides a framework for how companies should recognize, measure, present and disclose uncertain tax positions in
their consolidated financial statements. The Organization may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax
position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing
authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The Organization does not have any uncertain tax
positions as of September 30, 2014 and 2013. As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization did not record
any penalties or interest associated with uncertain tax positions. The Organization’s prior three tax years are open
and subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service.

Accounting Pronouncements Adopted - Tn December 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2011-11, “Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities”, which was later clarified by ASU 2013-01,
“Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities”. This guidance contained new
disclosure requirements regarding the nature of an entity’s rights of setoff and related arrangements associated with
its financial instruments and derivative instruments. This guidance became effective for the Organization
beginning on October 1, 2013, and did not have an impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In October 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-05, “Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Not-for-Profit Entities:
Classification of the Sale Proceeds of Donated Financial Assets in the Statement of Cash Flows”. This guidance
provides clarification on how entities classify cash receipts arising from the sale of certain donated financial assets
in the statement of cash flows. This guidance became effective for the Organization beginning on October 1, 2013,
and did not have a material impact on its consolidated statements of cash flows.

Accounting Pronouncements Pending Adoption - In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-04, “Obligations
Resulting from Joint and Several Liability Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation is Fixed at
the Reporting Date”. This guidance requires entities to measure obligations resulting from the joint and several
liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation within the scope of this guidance is fixed at the
reporting date. This guidance is effective for the Organization beginning October 1, 2014, with early adoption
permitted. The Organization has not yet evaluated the impact this guidance may have on its consolidated financial
statements.

Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications to the 2013 consolidated financial statements have been made in order
to conform with the 2014 presentation. Such reclassifications did not have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continned)

Subsequent Events - Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 13, 2015, the date through which
procedures were performed to prepare the consolidated financial statements for issuance. Management believes
there are no subsequent events having a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Note 3 - Net Patient Service Revenues and Concentrations of Credit Risk

The following reconciles gross patient service revenues to net patient service revenues, for the years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Gross revenues from services to patients $ 59,236,193 $ 59,080,335
Deductions for allowances {13,991,189) (12,174,860)
Net revenues from services to patients b 45,245,004 b 46,905,475

The Organization’s gross revenues received from Medicare were 25% and 24% during the years ended September
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Organization’s gross revenues received from Medicaid were approximately
45% and 42% and during the vears ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Laws and regulations
governing the Medicare and Medicald programs are complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at
least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by material amounts in the near term.

The Organization believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any
pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory
inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review
and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion frem the
Medicare and Medicaid programs. Changes in the Medicare and Medicaid programs and the reduction. of funding
levels could have an adverse impact on the Organization.

Patient accounts receivable and revenues are recorded when patient services are performed. Revenues from
services to patients include amounts estimated by management to be reimbursable by Medicare and Medicaid
programs. These revenues are different from established billing rates, and these differences are accounted for as
contractual allowances. Final determination of the amounts earned is subject to review by the third-party payers.
Amounts due to third-party reimbursement agencies represent management’s estimate of the final settlements.

Net patient service revenues represents the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and
others for services rendered, including estimated refroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with
third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are
rendered and adjusted in futare periods as final settlements are determined.

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the collectability of accounts
receivable, the Organization analyzes its past history and identifies trends for each of its major payer sources of
revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for bad debts. Management
regularly reviews data about these major payer sources of revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for
doubtful accounts.
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Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 3 - Net Patient Service Revenues and Concentrations of Credit Risk (continued)

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have third-party coverage, the Organization
analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts and a provision for bad debts,
if necessary (for example, for expected uncollectible deductibles and copayments on accounts for which the third-
party payer has not yet paid, or for payers who are known to be having financial difficulties that make the
realization of amounts due unlikely).

For receivables associated with self-pay patients (which includes both patients without insurance and patients wiih
deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill), the Organization
records a significant provision for bad debts in the period of service on the basis of its past experience, which
indicates that many patients are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially
responsible. The difference between the standard rates (or the discounted rates if negotiated) and the amounts
actually collected after all reasonable collection etforts have been exhausted is charged off against the allowance
for doubtful accounts.

Patient accounts receivable balances are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,154,424 and $1,398,952 as
of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Organization’s allowance for doubtful accounts for self-pay
patients was 31% and 64% of self-pay accounts receivable as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In
addition, the Organization’s self-pay writeoffs were $336,898 and $56,036 for fiscal years 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The Organization’s allowance for doubtful accounts covers all patient accounts receivable balances
greater than 151 days outstanding as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are insured under third-party payer
agreements. Gross receivables from patients and third-party payers as of September 30, 2014 and 2013 are
distributed as follows:

2014 2013
Medicaid 37% 49%
Medicare 29% 33%
Private patients and other third-party payers 34% 18%
Total 100% 100%

Note 4 - Related Party Transactions

The Organization is related to The Auxiliary of the Hebrew Home and Hospital, Incorporated (the Auxiliary), a not-
for-profit corporation, through common board members. The Auxiliary was established fo promote the religious,
physical and financial well being of the Home by providing services, entertainment and additional physical comfort
to the individuals it serves and by contributions to the Home. Included in unrestricted gifts and bequests in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets (deficit) was $20,000 and $10,000
received from the Auxiliary during the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, Non-interest bearing advances
totaling $23,710 and $16,945 were due from the Auxiliary as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Pledges receivable and temporarily restricted contributions from the Auxiliary were $6,315 and $26,315 as of
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Members of the Organization’s Board of Trustees are members of law firms that the Organization used for legal
services during 2014 and 2013. Total legal expenses paid to these firms during the years ended September 30, 2014
and 2013 were approximately $150,000 and $158,000, respectively. As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, there was
$1,500 and $18,944 owed to these firms, respectively.
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Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 4 - Related Pairty Transactions (continued)

The Organization also purchases services from companies owned by or employing individual board members.
Total amounts expended for such services, which primarily includes hospitalist and investment services, during the
years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 totaled approximately $83,000 and $92,000, respectively. As of

September 30, 2014 and 2013, there was $2,500 and $191 owed to these companies, respectively.

Note 5 - Assets Limited as to Use

The following is a summary of assets limited as to use, as of September 30, 2014 and 2013:

Current assets himited as to use:
Security deposits - cash 3
Patient funds held in trust - cash

Investments restricted under debt agreements:
Mortgage reserve funds
Liquidity reserve fund
Other reserves - Farmington Bank
Replacement reserve funds

Donor and board restricted investments

Total assets limited as to use $

2014 2013
412,980 343,149
151,966 114,753
564,946 457,902
197,612 193,828
880,415 956,313

7,503 7,496
62,615 62,615
2,201,232 2,436,092
3,349,377 3,656,344
3,914,323 4,114,246

The following is a summary of the asset allocation of assets limited to use, as of September 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Amount % Amount Yo
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,616,870 41% § 629,947 15%
11.S. obligations 96,221 3% 942,825 23%
Fixed income - 0% 27,575 1%
Equities - 0% 77,807 2%
Donor and board restricted investments 2,201,232 56% 2,436,092 59%
$ 3,914,323 100% § 4,114,246 100%
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Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 6 - Property, Plant and Equipment

The following is a summary of the Organization’s property, plant and equipment as of September 30, 2014 and

2013:
2014 2013
Land $ 2,612,381 $ 2,612,381
Building and building improvements 44,366,409 44,191,251
Furnishings and equipment 4,962,104 4,710,775
Motor vehicles 414,082 414,082
Construction in progress 186,525 237,606
Total 52,541,501 52,166,095
Less: Accumulated depreciation (36,095,392) (34,261,844)
Net property, plant and equipment 8§ 16,446,109 $ 17,904,251

Note 7 - Investments

Investments, which include donor and board restricted investments, are stated at fair value and consist of the

following, as of September 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013

Pooled funds held by JCF 3,286,467 $ 3,443,673
Domestic equity securities - 3,483,335
International equity securities - 24,399
Foreign bonds 1,400 1,900
Money market funds 5,337,709 161,537
Domestic fixed income funds - 1,287,108
International fixed income funds - 16,871
Hedge funds - 10,154
Public REITs - 10,868
Comimedity funds - 1,436

Total 8,625,576 $ 8,441,281

As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, net realized and change in unrealized gains on investments and assets limited

as to use totaled $605,789 and $8035,608, respectively.
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Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Aifiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 7 - Investmments (continued)

The pooled funds represent approximately 3.0% and 3.6% of the units in a portfolio of investments managed by the
JCF as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The following is a summary of the asset allocation of the pooled funds at JCF as of September 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Equities 63% 60%
U.S. government securities 21% 23% |
Alternative investments 14% 13% i
Cash and equivalents 2% 4%
Total 160% 100%

JCF holds several funds and split-interest agreements of which the Organization is the designated charitable
beneficiary. Because JCF retains variance powers, these funds do not qualify for recording as unconditional
promises to give or net assets under the provisions of FASB ASC 958-605. As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, !
JCF held $1,783,966 and $1,704,983, respectively, of certain designated and charitable gift annuities for the benefit '
of the Organization.

The following table shows the investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, as of
September 30, 2013:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

2013 Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Equities:

Consumer staples $ - $ - $ 49623 3§ (625) $ 49,623 % (625)

Energy 45,390 2,114) - - 45,390 (2,114)

Materials 21,952 (1,538) 35,726 (11,423) 57,678 (12,961}

Mutual funds - - 7.512 (1,039) 7.512 (1,039)
Fixed income

mutual fiunds 470,396 (10,980) 338,738 (16,793) 809,134 (27,773}
Commuodity funds - - 1,436 (639) 1,436 {639)

Total $ 537,738 $ (14,632) $ 433,033 § (30,519) § 970,773 $  (45,151)

There were no individual securities that are in an unrealized loss position as of September 30, 2014. In 2013, these :
unrealized losses were determined not to be other than temporary impaired based on the guidance provided in
FASB ASC 320, “Investments - Debt and Equity Securities”. :
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Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 8 - Fair Value Measurements

FASB ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”, provides a framework for measuring fair value.
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets in
active markets that the Organization has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in inactive markets;

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset; or

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

e & &

If the asset or liability has specified (contractual) terms, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantialty the full term of the asset.

Level 3 - Tnputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measuremertt.

The asset’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input
that is significant to the fair value measurement.
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Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 3&, 2014 and 2013

Note 8 - Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The following table presents the fnancial instruments carried at fair value as of September 30, 2014 by the

valuation hierarchy:

Investments (including donor and
board restricted):
Pooled funds held in custody
Foreign bonds
Money market funds
Total

Other assets limited as to use:
Cash and money market funds
U.S. government securities

Total

Pension plan assets:
Cash
Money market funds
Corporate and foreign bonds
Common equity mutual funds
Preferred equity securities
Equity mutual funds
Fixed income mutual funds

Total

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- $ - $ 3,286,467 $ 3,286,467
- 1,400 - 1,400
- 5,337,709 - 5,337,709
- 5,339,109 3,286,467 8,625,576
1,616,870 - - 1,616,870
- 96,221 - 96,221
1,616,870 96,221 - 1,713,091
10,947 - - 10,947
- 334,623 - 334,623
- 333,909 - 333,909
3,658,975 - - 3,658,975
78,027 - - 78,027
1,006,071 - - 1,006,071
- 1,035,429 - 1,035,429
4,754,020 1,703,961 - 6,457,981
6,370,890 $ 7,139.291 $ 3,286,467 $ 16,796,648
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 8 - Fair Value Measarements (continued)

The following table presents the financial instruments carried at fair value as of September 30, 2013 by the
valuation hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Tnvestments (including donor and
board restricted):
Pooled funds held in custody S - $ - $ 3443673 § 3,443,673
Domestic equity securities 3,483,335 - - 3,483,335
International equity securities 24,399 - - 24,399
Foreign bonds - 1,900 - 1,900
Money market funds - 161,537 - 161,537
Daomestic fixed income funds - 1,287,108 - 1,287,108
International fixed income funds - 16,871 - 16,871
Hedge funds - 10,154 - 10,154
Public real estate investment trust - 10,868 - 10,868
Commodity mutual funds - 1,436 - 1,436
Total 3,507,734 1,489,874 3,443,673 8,441,281
Other assets limited as to use:
Cash and cash equivalents 629,947 - - 629,047
U.S. government securities - 942,825 - 942,825
Fixed income mutual funds - 27,575 - 27,575
U.S. equity securities 77,807 - - 77,807
Total 707,754 970,400 - 1,678,154
Pension plan assets:
Cash 11,263 - - 11,263
Money market funds - 47,835 - 47,835
Corporate and foreign bonds - 531,001 - 531,001
Common equity funds 3,369,224 - - 3,369,224
Preferred equity securities 104,973 - - 104,973
Equity mutual funds 966,066 - - 966,066
Fixed income mutual funds - 959,745 - 959,745
Total 4,451,526 1,538,581 - 5,990,107
Total $ 8,667,014 § 3998855 § 3,443,673 $ 16,109,542

20




Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Notes to the Consolidated Financjal Statements |
As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 ‘

Note 8 - Fair Value Measurements {continued)

A rollforward as of September 30, 2014 and 2013 of the amounts classified as Level 3 investments within the fair
value hierarchy is as follows:

Pooled :
Funds ’
Balance as of October 1, 2012 $ 3,764,471
i.
Investment income: !
Net realized/unrealized gain on investments 399,443
Interest and dividends 62,256
Investment fees (36,835)
Distributions (840,472)
Purchase of investments 94,810
Balance as of September 30, 2013 3,443,673
Investment income: ;
Net realized/unrealized gain on investments 210,694
Interest and dividends 48,945
Investment fees (35,525)
Distributions {1,010,000)
Purchase of investments 628,680
Balance as of September 30, 2014 $  3.286,467

The Organization’s valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets at fair value are outlined below.
Where applicable, the Organization uses quoted prices in active markets for identical assets to determine fair value
(Level 1 inputs). This pricing methodology applies to cash and cash equivalents, equities and mutual funds.

If quoted prices in active markets for identical assets are not available, then quoted prices for similar assets, quoted
prices for identical assets in inactive markets or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset,
either directly or indirectly, will be used to determine fair value (Level 2 inputs). Securities typically priced using
Level 2 inputs include government securities, corporate and foreign bonds, fixed income securities, mutual funds
and public real estate trust funds, commodity mutual funds and money market funds.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for investments measured at fair value with
Level 2 inputs as of September 30, 2014 and 2013:

Money market funds: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual
securities are traded.
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Note 8 - Fair Value Measurements (continued)

United States government securifies, fixed income funds, hedge funds, and corporate and foreign bonds:
Certain government securities are valued at the closing price reported in the active market in which the bond is
traded. Other fixed income securities are valued using standard inputs which include benchmark yields,
reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers and
reference data including market research publications. Structured securities are measured using new issue data,
monthly payment information and collateral performance in addition to the standard inputs noted above.

Public real estate investment trusts and commodity mutual funds: Valued based on quoted market prices or
model driven valuations using significant inputs derived from or corroborated by observable market data.

Assets that are valued using significant unobservable inputs, such as extrapolated data, proprietary models, or
indicative quotes that cannot be corroborated with market data are classified in Level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy. The Organization’s pooled funds held in custody are classified within the Level 3 classification.

The Organization uses the net asset value (NAV) to determine the fair value of all the underlying investments
which (a) do not have a readily determinable fair value and (b) prepare their financial statements consistent with the
measurement principles of an investment company or have the attributes of an investment company. The following
table lists the investment in the pooled fund held by the Foundation as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, which is
disclosed in Level 3 above.

Fair #of Unfunded Timing to Redemption  Redemption Remaining
2014 Value Funds Commitments Draw Down Period Notice Period Life
Pooled funds held i 60 days or &
cored TNAs BEIGIN ¢ 3 286,467 1% . N/A Monthly ~ months if 100% N/A
custody (a) .
redemption
Fair # of Unpfunded Timing to  Redemption  Redemption Remaining
2013 Value Funds Commitments Draw Down Period Nofice Period Life
. 60 days or 6
Pooled fund
ooled funds held in ¢ ) 43 ooy 13 - N/A Monthly  months if 100% N/A
custody (a) )
redemption

(a) The pooled funds follow a total return approach to investing. This investment approach strives to
balance income and potential for capital appreciation so that both components can contribute to the
long-term total return of the pooled investment portfolio. The pooled funds investment policy and
guidelines and spending guidelines are designed to operate in concert in order to provide a
significant and stable flow of funds over the short-ferm to provide resources to meet current
community needs and, at the same time, maintain the purchasing power of the funds over the long-
term, so that the fund will be able to provide adequate resources to future generations to meet new
and emerging needs.

FASB ASC 820 also permits as a practical expedient, an entity holding investments in certain enfities that calculate
NAYV per share or its equivalent for which the fair value is not readily determinable, to measure the fair value of
such investments on the basis of that NAV per share, or its equivalent, without adjustment. The Organization has
applied this practical expedient measure in determining the fair value of its investment in the pooled fund held in
custody as of September 30, 2014 and 2013.
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Note 8 - Fair Value Measuremenis (continued)

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable
value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Organization believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to
determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the
reporting date.

The availability of observable market data is monitored fo assess the appropriate classification of financial
instruments within the fair value hierarchy. Changes in economic conditions or model-based valuation techniques
may require the transfer of financial instruments from one fair value level to another. In such instances, the transfer
is reported at the beginning of the reporting period. For the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, there have
been no significant transfers in or out of Levels 1, 2 or 3.

As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization’s other financial instruments included accounts receivable,
other assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses, other liabilities and long-term debt. The carrying amounts
reported in the consolidated balance sheets for these financial instruments approximate their fair value.

Note 9 - Pledges Receivable

Unconditional promises to give to the Organization are included in the consolidated financial statements as pledges
receivable and revenue in the appropriate net asset category. The pledges are expected to be received equally over
a five-year period. The pledges are recorded at their present value, discounted using a 5% rate.

The Organization began a fundraising initiative, entitled the Second Century Campaign during the year ended
September 30, 2005. The pledges are due in various payment streams and have been recorded at their net present
value using discount rates from 4% to 5%.

2014 2013
Pledges receivable, gross $ 82,105 $ 199,275
Less: unamortized discount (4,045) {48,433)
Net unconditional promises to give 3 78,060 $ 150,842
Due within one year $ 82,105 b 120,840
Due in one to five years - 78,435
Total $ 82,105 $ 199,275

Note 10 - Lines of Credit

As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization has three line of credit agreements with TDD Bank. The first
line of credit agreement has total availability of $3,500,000 payable on demand, with interest at the Wall Street
Journal’s prime rate less one percent, with a minimum rate of 4% as of September 30, 2014 and 2013. The first line
of credit is secured by $5,293,974 and $4,796,900 of marketable securities maintained at TD Wealth Management
and is subject to certain covenants as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In addition, the Organization
has a limited guarantee by the Hebrew Health Care Foundation, Inc. on the first line of credit not to exceed
$3,500,000.
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Note 10 - Lines of Credit (continued)

The Home is subject to a debt service coverage ratio financial covenant under the terms of this line of credit
agreement. The Home must maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.30. The Home was in violation of this
financial covenant for the vears ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, and has not received a waiver for these
violations as of the date of this report.

The second line of credii agreement has a total availability of $1,500,000 payable on demand, with interest at the
Wall Street Journal’s prime rate less one percent, with a minimum rate of 4% as of September 30, 2014 and 2013.
The second line of credit is secured by investments of the Foundation. The Hoffman SummerWood Community is
subject to a debt service coverage ratio financial covenant under the terms of this line of credit agreement. The
Hoffman SummerWood Comimunity must maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.25. The Hoffman
SummerWood Community was in compliance with the financial covenant for the years ended September 30, 2014
and 2013.

The balances outstanding on these two lines of credit totaled $4,923.961 and $4,779,722 as of September 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively, and are subject to annual review. These lines of credit expired on August 31, 2014 and are
in the process of renegotiation and pending renewal. It is uncertain as to whether these lines of credit will be
renewed by the bank. These lines of credit are included within current liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheets.

The third line of credit agreement has a total availability of $150,000 and is to be used for letters of credit, with a
2% fee for each letter of credit issued, with interest at the Wall Street Journal’s prime rate if drawn upon. The third
line of credit had no outstanding balance as of September 30, 2014 and 2013.

Note 11 - Notes and Bonds Payable

The composition of notes and bonds payable of the Organization is as follows:

2014 2013
$20,242,000 Government National Mortgage
Association (GNMA) mortgage-backed securities,
the Mortgagee is Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association $ 19,375,475 5 19,375,475
$17.055,000 CHEFA Variable Rate Demand
Revenue Bond, Hoffman SummerWood
Community Issue, Series B 15,680,009 16,050,000
$500,000 note payable to Hartford Healthcare
Corporation (See Note 1) ' 500,000 -
Note payable to the Metropolitan District
Commission in annual installments totaling
$13.611, including interest at 6%, maturing in
June, 2015 9,039 21,153
35,564,514 35,446,628
Less: Current portion (20,269,514) (19,756,903)
Total S 15,295,000 b 15,689,725
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Note 11 - Notes and Bonds Payable (continued)

Anticipated future maturities of notes and bonds payable for the next five fiscal years and thereafier are as follows:

2015 $ 20,269,514
2016 405,000
2017 425,000
2018 445,000
2019 465,000
Thereafter 13,555,000

$ 35,564,514

Wells Fargo Morfgage - The mortgage is payable to Wells Fargo Bank in monthly installments of $105,435,
including interest at 5.0% through October 2041 and is secured by land and buildings. The Federal Housing
Administration under the Section 223(a)(7) Housing Program insures the note payable. During the years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization incurred $946,366 and $961,885, respectively, in interest expense
related to the mortgage.

Under the terms of the mortgage agreement with Wells Fargo and the Regulatory Agreement with the Federal
Housing Administration, the Organization is required to fund a replacement reserve for the replacement of assets.
There are certain other restrictions and covenants, relating to transfer and disposal of mortgaged property,
maintenance of insurance coverage and methods of conducting the Organization’s operations. The replacement
reserve is held by the mortgagee and consists of cash and is included within assets limited as to use as described in
Note 5.

As discussed in Note 2, the Organization is in default of its mortgage note as the Organization has not paid its
mortgage payments since October 2012. The non-payments are an event of default and this default has caused the
mortgage note to be reclassified to current debt, as the debt is now callable by the lender. The amount of accrued
interest due to the non-payments was $1,960,968 and $961,885 as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

CHEFA Series B Bonds - The CHEFA Series B Bonds were issued in November 2007: (i) to refund the Series A
Bonds; (ii) to finance and refinance the costs of the construction and equipping of a new wing at Hoffman
SummerWood Community’s assisted living facility to house an additional 43 assisted living units and to expand
certain portions of the existing facility. The CHEFA bonds consist of Series B variable rate bonds due July 1, 2037.
The bonds are secured by land, building and a letter of credit with an expiration date of November 7, 2015. During
the vears ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization incurred $150,733 and $166,253, respectively, in
interest expense related to the bonds. The interest rate related to these bonds is a variable rate, which was .06% and
.09% as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Principal payments to the bond principal account of $26,666 per month began in July 2010, with the agent making
payments annually to bond holders beginning in July 2011. The payments increased to $27,916 in July 2011 and
increased to $32.083 in July 2014.

The Organization is required to maintain a liquidity reserve under the terms of the CHEFA bond agreement, which
is included within assets limited as to use as described in Note 5.
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Note 11 - Notes and Bonds Payable (continued)

Hoffman SummerWood Community is subject to certain financial covenants under the terms of the CHEFA bond
agreement. Hoffman SummerWood Community must maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.25. Hoffman
SummerWood Community was in compliance with the debt service coverage ratio for the years ended September
30, 2014 and 2013.

Note 12 - Capital Lease Obligations

During 2012, the Organization entered into a lease arrangement, due in monthly payments of $951 through
November 2016, collateralized by the leased vehicle with a net book value of $14,257 and $27,417 as of September
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. There was an outstanding balance of $23,397 and $33,380 as of September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

During 2013, the Organization entered into a lease arrangement, due in monthly payments of $1,009 through
August 2016, collateralized by the leased equipment with a net book value of $24,385 as of September 30, 2013.
There was an outstanding balance of $22,272 ag of September 30, 2013. This lease was cancelled and the
equipment was retumed during October 2014 since the equipment did not meet the needs of the Organization.

During 2014, ithe Organization entered into three lease arrangements, due in monthly payments of $4,271 through
November 2016, September 2018 and November 2018, collateralized by the Jeased telephone equipment with a net
book value of $113,034 as of September 30, 2014. There was an outstanding balance of $110,900 as of September
30, 2014,

The value of minimum future lease payments under these capital lease obligations are as follows:

2015 $ 62,659
2016 62,659
2017 26,151
2018 18,849
2019 983
171,301

Less: Amounts representing interest (37,004)
Total $ 134,297
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As of and for the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 13 - Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

The following is a summary of accounts payable and accrued expenses, as of September 30, 2014 and 2013:

Accounts payable

Accrued vacation

Accrued employee benefits
Accrued payroll

Provider tax

Total

Note 14 - Pension Flans

Bargaining Unit Plan - Approximately 36.5% of
bargaining agreement.

2014 2013
h 2,652,965 3 2,529,508
2,433,001 2,439,229
654,939 684,588
789,877 708,570
248,295 362,748
3 6,779,077 § 6,724,643

the Organization’s labor force is covered by a collective

A new collective bargaining agreement was negotiated and approved by the Union

membership effective October 1, 2011 through September 30, 2015 and was subsequently extended through
September 30, 2016, which replaced the former agreement that was effective October I, 2008 through September

30, 2011

Bargaining unit employees are covered under a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan

administered by the bargaining unit. The Organization contributes monthly to this plan based on a negotiated flat
rate per employee hour worked. The risks of participating in this multi-empioyer pian is different from single-

employer plans in the following aspects:

e Assets contributed to the multi-employer plan by one employer miay be used to provide benefits
to employees of another participating employer;

e [fa participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligation of the plan may

be borne by the remaining employers; and

e [If the Organization chose to stop participating in the multi-employer plan, it would be required to
pay that plan an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal

Hability.
Pension Iixpiration Date of
Protection Act FIP/RP Collective
{"PPA" Certified Status Pending/ Contributions Surcharge Bargaining
Pension Trust Fund Pension Plan EIN 2014 2013 Implemented (2) 2014 2013 Tmposed Agreement (3)
Laborers” Intersational
Union of North American
National Pension Fund 52-6074345 Red Red Tmplemented $ 316,216 § 262942 No Seplember 30, 2016

1} The most recent PPA zone status available in 2014 and 2013 is for the plan’s years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The zone status is based on information received from the plan and is certified by the plan’s actuary. Among other factors, plans in
the red zone are generally less than 65% funded, plans in the orange zone are less than 80% funded and have an accumulated funding
deficiency in the current year or projected in the next six years, plans in the yellow zone are less than 80% funded, and plans in the

green zone are at least 80% funded.

2)  The “FIP/RP Status Pending/Implemented” column indicates plans for which a financial improvement plan (“FIP”) or rehabilitation

plan (“RP*) is either pending or has been implemented.

3)  Lists the expiration dates of the collective bargaining agreements to which the plans are subject.
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Note 14 - Pension Plans (continued)

Nonbargaining Unit Plan - The Organization has a noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan covering all
nonbargaining unit employees who satisfied certain eligibility requirements. Employer contributions made to this
plan were $122,350 and $278,560 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. This plan was
frozen on September 30, 2007 and replaced by a 401(k) Retirement Plan that provides for an employer match of up
to 2% of the employees annual salary for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In addition,
the Organization has another defined contribution, non-matching, retirement plan covering substantially all
employees. The Organization makes matching contributions to the plan af the discretion of the Board of Directors,
which amounted to $154,001 and $157,824 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Benefits under the defined benefit plan are based on years of service.

Stgnificant disclosures relating to the defined benefit plan, as of September 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2014 2013
Changes in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginning of year 5 8,120,222 $ 9,315,332
Interest cost 400,704 374,819
Benefits paid to participants {325,562) (373,187)
Actuarial loss (gain) 1,019,743 (1,196,742)
Benefit obligations at end of year $ 9,215,167 b 8,120,222
2014 2013
Changes in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ) 5,990,107 3 5,402,513
Actual return on plan assets 671,086 682,221
Employer contributions 122,350 278,560
Benefits paid (325,562) (373,187)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year h 6,457,981 $ 5,990,107
Accrued pension liability (no current portion is due) 3 (2,757,186) $ {2,130,115)

The foHowing were the weighted-average assumptions used to determine the pension benefit obligations as of
September 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013

Discount rate 4.40% 5.05%

Expected return on plan assets 7.50% 7.50%
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Note 14 - Pension Plans (continued)

The following were the weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost for years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013

Discount rate 4.10% 4.10%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00%

Amounts recorded in unrestricted net assets as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, not yet amortized as components
of net periodic benefit costs, are as follows:

2014 2013

Net actuarial loss $ 2,789,860 $ 2,297,169

The amortization of the above items expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit costs is $318,322 for the year
ended September 30, 2014.

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2014 2013
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Interest cost b 400,764 $ 374,819
Expected return on plan assets (386,8062) (360,866)
Recognized net loss 242,828 390,043
Net periodic benefit cost 3 256,730 h 397,996

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets reflects the plan sponsor’s estimate of future investment
returns {expressed as an annual percentage), taking into account the allocation of plan assets among different
investment classes and long-term expectations of future returns on each class.

The investment allocation of the defined benefit plan’s assets is as follows:

2014 2013
Equity securities 74% 74%
Debt securities 21% 25%
Cash equivalents 5% 1%
Total 100% 100%
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Note 14 - Pension Plans (continued)

The following benefit amounts, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as
follows:

2015 $ 985,000
2016 $ 771,000
2017 $ 488,000
2018 & 509,000
2019 $ 823,000
2019 - 2023 $ 3,463,000

The Organization has a sub-committee of Hebrew Health Care’s board level Human Resources Committee that
oversees the investment of pension assets for the Hebrew Home and Hospital Inc. Retirement Income Plan. Funds
are currently invested and managed by Webster Financial Advisors, a division of Webster Bank. The investment
approach taken by the Committee mirrors the investment philosophy of the Hebrew Health Care Foundation, Inc.
The plan employs a total return on investment approach, whereby a mix of equity securities, debt securities and
other assets is targeted to maximize the long-term return on assets. Investments are monitored through periodic
portfolio reviews with Webster Financial Advisors and compared to annual actuarial liability measurements. The
expected yield on plan assets is determined based on historical experience, market conditions and recommendations
from the Organization’s actuary.

Note 15 - Employee Health Insurance

The Organization maintains a self-insured health insurance plan for its employees. Under the plan, the
Organization pays an insurance company certain fixed and variable costs, including administration fees, actual
claims incurred and a premium for losses exceeding a negotiated amount. The Organization’s cost for the plan
totaled $5,425,609 and $6,214,571 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
Organization has also recorded a liability for incurred but not reported claims of $438,880 and $456,994 as of
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In addition, the Organization has purchased stop loss insurance
coverage. The coverage is initiated when a Joss reaches $150,000 on a per claim basis.

Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases - The Organization leases various office equipment under operating leases expiring through
September 2017. On August 10, 2010, the Organization entered into an operating lease beginning October i, 2010
and through September 2015 for HCS’s Home Health and Hospice office space. Rental expense under these leases
amounted to $98,915 and $84,702 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The value of future minimum lease payments under these lease agreements are as follows:

2015 $ 101,318
2016 b 42,338
2017 $ 42,338

Litigation - The Organization is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the course of
business. After consultation with legal counsel, management anticipates that these matters will be resolved without
material adverse effect on the Organization’s future financial position or results from operations.
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Note 17 - Special Events

The following is a summary of special events income (included in gifts, bequests and special events) and expenses
(included in development expenses) within the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets
(deficit) as of September 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014
Ticket sales and sponsorships $ 273,709
Less: Expenses (99,555)
Net special events income 3 174,154

2013

$ 312,455
(121,256)

$ 191,199

Note 18 - Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

The following is a summary of temporarily restricted net assets as of September 30, 2014 and 2013:

2013

$ 45,637
27,885
28,500
18,950

123,020

2014

Second Century Campaign 3 5,189
Other funds 29,525
Annual Fund 64,196
The Music Fund 4,577
The Rabbi Fund 6,712
Appreciation of permanently restricted net assets 31,629

Total 3 141,828

$ 243,992

During 2014, management performed a review of net asset classifications by reviewing and researching original
documentation to properly and accurately reflect the current net assets. The net asset categories in the conselidated
financial statements were revised during 2014 from 2013 by transferring $35,696 from unrestricted net assets to
temporarily restricted net assets, which was related to the Annual Fund.

Note 19 - Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets amounted to $2,308,313 and $2,288,263 as of September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, which include investments to be held in perpetuity, the income of which is expendable to support
patient special needs and other services.
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Note 20 - Conditional Promises to Contribute

As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization had received $1,214,184 and $1,035,000 of conditional
promises to contribute, of which $1,012,340 relates to the Organization®s Second Century Campaign and $201,844
relates to a grant from the State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management for the purchase of buses for the
Organization’s adult day health center services. The buses must be purchased before the Organization is
reimbursed for the majority of the costs. The Organization anticipates to purchase ihese buses during fiscal year
2015. The contributions related to the Second Century Campaign will be recorded as to donor intention when
received or when the condition has been met.

Note 21 - Professional Liability Insurance

The Organization purchases professional and general liabilify insurance to cover medical malpractice claims.
Through September 30, 2013, the Organization was covered by a claims-made policy. There are no known claims
ot incidents that may result in the assertion of additional claims. Based on historical evidence, the Organization
believes that a reserve for claims from unknown incidents is not necessary, and as such, no reserve has been
accrued in the consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2014 and 2013. The $332,233 and $424,056
of expected insurance liabilities and recoveries as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, discussed earlier in Note 2,
relates to workers” compensation and general liability coverages.

Note 22 - Endowment Net Assets

Changes in endowment net assels for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Balance as of October 1, 2012 $ 426,101 h 33,345 3 2,286,328 $ 2,745,774
Investment return: _ ’
Investment income 14,771 37,178 - 51,949
Net change in market value 94,453 114,418 - 208,871
Contributions 88,536 4,339 1,935 94,810
Distributions and fees (395,663) (66,460) - (462,123)
Balance as of September 30, 2013 228,198 122,820 2,288,263 2,639,281
Investment refurmn:
Investment income 14,077 33,178 - 47,255
Net change in market value 57,902 (4,209) - 53,693
Contributions 7,913 718 20,050 28,681
Distributions and fees {300,993) (121,078) - {422,071)

Balance as of September 30, 2014 $ 7,097 $ 31,429 $ 2,308,313 $ 2,346,839

The Organization’s endowment net assets consist of multiple funds established for a variety of purposes. The
endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to
function as endowments. As required by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds
desipnated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence
or absence of donor restrictions.
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Note 22 - Endowment Net Assefs (continued)

The Organization has interpreted the relevant laws as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift
as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. The
remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets
is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the
Organization during its annual budgeting process.

The Organization considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-
restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the fund; (2) the purposes of the Organization and
the donor-restricted endowment fund; (3) general economic conditions; (4} the possible effect of inflation and
deflation; (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investiments; (6) other resources of the
Organization; and (7) the investment policies of the Organization.

Spending Policy, Return Objectives and Risk Parameters - At the discretion of the Board, 5% of the average
market value of the portfolio at September 30 of each of the preceding twenty quarters is applied to operations. As
a result of that caleulation, a portion of cumulative interest and dividends, cumulative net realized gains and net
appreciation is allocated to operations in accordance with the Organization’s investment policies and procedures.
During the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Board of Trustees approved an appropriation in the
amount of $422,071 and $462,123, respectively.

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing
power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the
Organization must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified periods as well as board-designated funds. Under this
policy, as approved by the Board of Trustees, the endowment assets are invested in a diversified manner to reduce
the adverse impact that any single security or class of securities may have on the portfolio.

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Organization relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield
(interest and dividends). The Organization targets a diversified asset allocation to maintain sufficient liquidity to
satisfy near term cash flow needs and achieve its long-term retumn objectives within prudent risk constraints to keep
pace with inflation over a full market cycle (3-5 years or longer). This is consisient with the Organization’s
objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as
well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return. The amount of approved
spending from Foundation investments was $430,000 and 400,000 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Funds with Deficiencies - From time to time, the fair value of assefs associated with individual donor-restricted
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or law requires the Organization to refain as a fund of
perpetual duration. Deficiencies of this nature were approximately $177,946 and $173,519 for the years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and have been accounted for in unrestricted realized and unrealized
losses. During the year ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, gains of approximately $9,470 and $66,497
associated with donor restricted funds were recorded as umrestricted to restore deficiency losses recorded in
unresiricted net assets as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Note 23 - Funetional Expenses

Expenses of the Organization incurred during the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, by functional area,

were as follows:

Health care services
General and administrative
Fundraising

Total

2014 2013
38,130,472 $  38,004734
16,890,259 17,214,964

157,533 205,042
55,178,264  $ 55,424,740
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Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2014
Hebrew Hehrew Conkecticut Consolidated
Hebrew Home and Hebrew Hebrew Health Care Geriatric Totals
Health Care, Hospital, Community Lifc Choices, Foundation, Specialey Prior to Consolidated
Inc. Incorporated Services, Inc. Inc, Inc. Group, P.C, Eliminations Eliminaiions Totaly
Asscts
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents § 27527 8% 75442 % 80835 § 3863 0§ 3,335 % - b 190,502 § - ¥ 190,802
Assets limited as to use, current portion - 149,466 - 415,480 - - 564 946 - 564,946
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts of $1,154,424 - 3,168,169 719,281 4,959 - - 3,802,409 - 3,892,409
Pledges receivable, current portion 71,745 5,315 - - - - 78,060 - 78,060
Other receivables 13,107 332,233 - - 174,000 39,086 558,426 (174,000) 384,426
Inventory - 268,622 - - - - 268,622 - 268,622
Prepaid expenses 260,875 109,183 8,523 80858 - 14,283 482,722 - 482,722
Total current assets 373,054 4,109,430 808,639 514,160 177,335 53,369 6,035,987 (174,000) 5,861,987
Aszets limited 2s to use, net of current portion:
Donor restricied livesinients - - - - 2,194,135 - 2,184,135 - 2,124.135
Board designated investments - - - - 7,097 - 7,097 - 7,897
Investments restricled under debt agreements - 41,920 - 1,106,225 - - 1,148,145 - 1,148 145
Total assets limited as to use,
net of current portion - 41,920 - 1,106,225 2,201,232 - 3,349,377 - 3,349,377
Property, plant and equipment, net - 3,950,157 66,191 12,504,721 - - 16,521,109 (75,000} 16,446,109
Cither assets:
Cash surrender value of life insurance - - - - 137,660 - 137,660 - 137,660
Tovestments - 42,688 - - 6,381,656 - 6,424,344 - 6,424,344
Deposits - 198,278 9,591 - - - 207,869 - 207,869
Mertgage acquigition costs, net - 451,415 - 489,299 - - 970,714 - 970,714
Due from affiliates 370,007 28,967 106,628 745,418 1,049,095 - 2,300,115 (2,276,405) 23,710
Total ather assets 370,007 751,348 116,219 1,234,717 7,568,411 - 10,040,702 (2.276,405) 7,764,297
Total assets $ 745061 $ 8852895 3 991,049 § 15,359,823 3 9,546,973 3 53,369 § 35947175 $  {2.525405) § 33,421,770

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Liabililies and Net Assets (Delicit)

Current Habilities:

Notes and bends payable, curent portion

Capital leage obligations, current portion

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued interest expense

Lines of credit

Funds held i trust

Deferred revenue

Total current {isbilities
Pue to affiliates
Notes and bonds payable, net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of cument portion
Acerued pension liability
Total liabilities
MNet assets (defiot)
Unrestricted
Tempararily restricted
Permanently restricted

Net assets (deficit)

Totat liabilities and net assets {deficit)

Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Consolidating Balance Sheet (continued)

September 30, 2014
Hebrew Hebrew Connecticut Consolidated
Mebrew Home and Hebrew Hebrew Health Care Geriatric Totals
Health Care, Hospital, Community Life Choices, Foundation, Specialty Prior to Consolidated
Inc, Incorporated Services, Inc. Ine. Inc. Group, I.C. Eliminations Eliminations Totals
3 500,000 8 19375475 $ - $ 394,039 $ - 3 - § 20269514 % - $ 20,269,514
17,821 - - 10,532 - - 28,353 - 28,353
1,118,738 4,548 870 553,407 389,111 - 168,951 6,779,077 - 6,779,077
- 1,960,968 - 4370 - - 1,965,338 . 1,965,338
- 3,499,999 - 1,423,962 - - 4,923 961 - 4,923,961
- 149,466 - 415,480 - - 564,946 - 564,946
53,528 ; 59847 - - - 113370 - 113,370
1,690,087 26,554,778 613,249 2,637,494 - 168,931 34,644,559 - 34,644,559
1,794,513 320,397 28967 101,009 31,51% - 2,276,405 (2,276,405} -
- - 174,000 15,295,000 - - 15,469,000 (174,000} 15,295,000
- 95,933 - 12,011 105,944 105,044
. 5,757,186 - - - - 2,757,186 - 2,757,186
3 484,600 32,706,294 816,216 18,045,514 31,519 168,951 55,253,004 (2,450,405) 52,802,689
(2,805,735) (23,899,402) 169,833 (2,685,691) 7,580,517 (115,582) (21,756,060) (75,000) {21,831,060)
64,196 46,503 - - 31,629 - 141,328 - 141,828
- - 5,000 - 2,303,313 - 2,308,313 - 2,308,313
(2,741,539) (23,853,399 174,833 (2,685,651} 9,913,459 (115,582) (19,305,919) (75,000) (19,380,919}
$ 743,061 $ 8,852895 5 991,049 $ 15359823 $ 9946978 $ 53,369 $ 35947175 $ (2,525,405 § 33,421,770

See accompanying Independent Auditors” Report.




Asgels
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets limited as to use, current portion
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts ef §1,368, 252
Pledges receivable, current portion
(hher receivables
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Asseds limited as (o use, net of current portion:
Donor restricted investments
Board designated investments
Investments restricted under debt agreements
Total assets limited as to use,
net of current portion

Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets:
Pledges receivable, long-term
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Investrents
Deposits
Mortgage acquisition costs, net
Due from affiliates

Total other assets

Total assets

Hebrew Heaith Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2013
Hebrew Hebrew Connecticut Consolidated
Hebrew Home and Hebrew Hebrew Health Care Geriatric Totals
Health Care, Hospital, Community Life Choices, Foundation, Specialty Prior to Consolidated
Ine, Incorporated Services, Inc. Inc. Tne. Group, P.C. Eliminations Eli Totals
$ 156,722 $ 29235  § 63,583 % - $ 3,332 - 3 252,872 % - 3 252,872
- 112,253 - 345,649 - - 457,902 - 457,902
- 3,478,478 854,179 10,992 - - 4,343,649 - 4,343 649
110,840 10,000 - - - - 120,840 - 120,840
56,598 426,278 - - 174,000 39,086 695,962 (174,000} 521,962
- 256,397 - - - - 256,397 - 256,597
15,585 279,474 4,022 98 344 - 15707 413,132 - 413,132
339,745 4,562,115 921,784 454,985 177,332 54,793 6,540,754 (174,000) 6,366,754
- - - - 2,207,854 - 2,207,894 - 2,207,864
. B - N 228,198 - 278,198 - 228,198
- 41913 - 1,178,339 - - 1,220,252 - 1,220,252
- 41,913 - 1,178,339 2,436,092 - 3,656,344 - 3,656,344
- 4,599 661 86,692 13,292,898 - - 17,979,251 (75,000) 17,904,251
13,687 16,315 - - - - 30,002 - 30,002
- - - - 115,352 - 115,352 - 115,352
- 198,230 - - 5,800,939 - 6,005,189 - 6,005,189
- 198,278 9,551 - - - 207,869 - 207,869
- 337,574 - 493,896 - - 831,470 - 831,470
647,637 740,867 106,628 - 1,015,522 - 2,810,654 (2,793,709) 16,945
961,324 1,491,284 116,219 493 896 6,937,813 - 10,000,536 (2,793,709) 7,206,827
$ 1301082 § 10724973 § 1124695 3 15420118 § 9,551,237 34,793 3 38176885 § (53,042,709) 8§ 35,134,176

See accompanying Independent Auditors” Report.
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Liabilities and Net Assels (Deficit)

Current liabilities:

Nates and bonds payable, current portion

Capital lease cbligations, current porion

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accroed interest expense

Lines of credit

Funds held in trust

Deferred revenue

Taotal current habilities

Due 1o afliliates

Notes and bonds payable, eet of cumrent portion
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion
Accraed pensien lability

‘Total liabilities
Net assets {deficity:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Net assets (deficit)

Tolal liabilities and net assels (deficit)

Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Consolidating Balance Sheet (continued)

September 30, 2013
Hebrew Hebrew Connecticat Consolidated
Hebrew Home and Hebrew Hebrew Health Care Geriagric Todals
Health Care, Haospital, Community Life Choices, Foundstion, Specialty Prior to Consolidated
Inc. Encorporated Services, Inc. Inc, Inc. Group, P.C. Eliminations Eliminations Totals

3 - $ 19375475 § - $ 381428 % - 3 - 19756903 8 - § 19,758,903
- 5441 - 9,982 - - 15,423 - 15,423

187,278 5,405,538 483,805 291,739 . 155,683 5,724,643 - 6,724,645

- 961,885 - 4,705 - - 966,590 - 966,590

- 3,499,999 - 1,279,723 - - 4,779,722 - 4,779,722

- 112,253 - 345,678 - - 457,931 - 457,931

- - 615 - - - 615 - 615

387,878 29,360,591 484,420 2,313,255 - 155,683 32,701,827 - 32,701,827

1,756,389 - 843 086 162,715 31,519 - 2,793,709 (2,763,709} -

- - 174,000 15,689,725 - - 15,863,725 (174,000} 15,689,725

- 16,831 - 23,398 - - 40,229 - 40,229

- 2,130,113 - - - - 2,130,113 - 2,130,113
2,144,267 31,507,537 1,501,506 18,189,063 31,519 155,683 53,529,605 (2,967,709) 50,561,596
(871,60%) (20,875,036} (381,811} (2,768,975) 7,113,435 (100,890) (17,884,975) (75,000) (17,950,975)
28,500 692,472 - - 123,020 - 243,992 - 243,992

- - 5,000 - 2,283,263 - 2,288,263 - 2,288,263
(843,198) (20,762,564) (376,811} (2,758,975) 9,519,718 (100,890} (15,352,720) (75,000) (15,427,720)

§ 1,301,065 § 10,724,973 $§ 1,124,695 3 15,420,118 5 9,551,237 § 54,793 $ 38,176,885 §  (3,042,709) % 35,134,176

See accompanying Independent Auditors™ Report.
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Opezating revenuss:
MNet patient service revenues
Home hezlth care revenne
Adult day healih center services
‘Net patient revenues
Provision for bad debts

Net paticnt revenues less provision for bad debis

Member services and rental income - Hoffman
SummerWood Commuanity
Grants
Maragement fees
Other income
Net assets released from resmrictions
used for operations
Total opezating revenues

Operating expenses;
MNursing services
Administration
Health benefits
Nutntional services
Medical services
Building operations
Depreciation and ansortization
Environments} services
Pharmacy scrvices
Provider tax
Interest expense
Rehabiliation services
Drevelopment
Social services
Life: ennichment gervices
Health mformation management

Total operating expenses

{Loss) income fom operations

Non-operating gains (fosses):
Interest and dividend income and distributions.
Net realized gains (Josses) on mvestments
Change in cash surender value of life msurance
Donation expense
Gifis, bequests, and special events
Invesunent fees

Total nop-operatng gains

Excess of revenues over (under) expenses

Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (Deficit)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Hebrew Bebrew Conneeticat Consolidated
Hehrew Home and Hebrew Hebrew Rralith Care Geriatric Totals
He:ukth Care, Hospital, Communify Life Choices, Fouadation, Specialty Prior to Coosolidated
Ioc. Incorporated Services, Foc, TInc. Ine. Group, P.C. Eliminati i Tofals
- ¥ 38.196.613 $ - b3 - - ¥ 755,087 5 38,951,700 5 (300,000) & 38,651,700
- 35,095 6,100,590 - - - 6,135,685 - 6,135,683
- - 457,619 - - - 437,619 - 457,619
. 35,231,708 6,558,208 B - 755,087 45,543,000 (300,000) 43,245,004
- (349,999) (48,428) - - - (358.427) - (398,427
- 37,881,709 6,309,781 - - 755,087 43,146,577 (300,000 44,846,377
. - - 4,785,469 - - 4,785 469 - 4,785,469
114,385 282,750 81370 - - - 478,505 £270,250 208,235
1815951 - - - - - 1815951 {1,815.951) -
2,057 81,066 7962 309,203 - - 407,288 (35,368) 351,220
- 68,509 - = 121,078 - 189.587 - 189.587
1939393 38,314,034 6,392,113 3,094,672 121,078 733,087 52,823,377 (2,441,569 50,3 08
- 17,271,506 2,626,014 - - 36,969 15,934 439 (160,060) 19,854,489
1,855,211 4,057,808 3734947 1,544,403 - 635,795 12,332,164 (1,972,113 10,359,449
236,986 4,173,436 631,094 267,001 - 87,092 5,425,609 - 5,425,609
- 2,882,794 53,368 914,141 - - 3,852,363 (55,368) 3,796,935
- 2,495 837 22,499 - - 539,482 3,061,813 (43,23G) 3,018,582
- 1,351,565 61,121 564517 - - 1.577.203 - 1977,203
- 894,715 29,603 9039230 - - 1,833,548 - 1.833,548
- 1,560,635 3,928 205,028 - - 1,768,611 - 1,765,611
- 1,681,179 - - - - 1681179 - 1,681,179
- 1,460,018 - - - - 1.460.018 - 1,460,018
2,028 1,101,140 - 217,013 - - 1,370,183 - 1,320,183
- 876,573 182,923 - - - 1,069,496 - 1065496
824,621 - . - - - 24,621 (270,250) 554,371
- 504,128 12,057 - - - 516,185 - 316,185
- 377,309 - - - - 377369 - 377,369
- 164.037 - - - - 164,037 - 164,037
3.038.846 40,836,760 7,365,554 3,021,335 - 1.333.338 57,619,833 {2.441,569) 35178264
(1,05%,4523) (2.542,726) (770441 73337 121,078 (578,251 {4,796 456) - (4,796 456)
- 4,343 - 3,004 201,907 - 211344 - 211,34
- {1%) - 24,785 1,349,368 - 1,374,135 - 1,374,138
- - - - 22308 - 22308 - 22308
- . - - (430,027) - (430,027 430,027 -
1,086,736 16 - - 28,681 - 1115453 {430,027) 685,426
- (316) - - (73,0013 - (73317 - (75317
1,086,756 4,025 = 29.883 1,097,236 - 2,217,500 - 2.217.500
(12699 % (2538701 % (770441 8 103,226 1218314 § 378.251) _§ (2,578.556; % - § (2,578,556)

See accompanying Independent Aunditors’” Report.
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Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes ir Net Assets (Deficit) {(continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Bebrew Hebrew Connecticut Cuonsolidated
Hebrew Home and Hehrew Hebrew Healtk Care Geriatric Totals
Healih Cace, Hospital, Commumity Life Choices, Foundation, Speciably Prior to Consolidated
Inc. Incorporated Services, Inc. Inc. Tac. Group, P.C. Elinginafions Eliminations Totals
Unresiricted net asgets (deficil):
Excess of revenues over (under) expenses $ (12,697) $ (2,538,701) 13 (770, 441) § 103,220 3 1218314 ¥ {378.251) 3 (2,578,330) 5 - H {2,578,350)
Net vnrealized gains (losses) on investments - 7026 - {19,936} {751,232) - {764, 142) - (764,142)
Met asset ransfer to HCS and CGSG from HHC (1,883,644} - 1,322,085 - - 563,559 - - -
Net asset transfer (35,696) - - - - - (35,696) - (35,696)
Change in pension insirament - (492.691) - - - - {492, 691) - (492 £91)
Chaage in unrestricted net assets (deficit) (1,934,037) (3,024,366) 351,644 83,284 467,082 {14,683) (3,871,083) - (3,871,085)
Temporarily restricted net assets.
Contributions - 22,040 - - 718 - 22,758 - 22,758
Net asset iransfer 35,696 - - - - - 35,696 - 35,696
Interest and dividend income - - - - 33,178 - 33178 - n17s i
Net realized and unrealized losses - - - - (4.209) - 4,209) - (4.209) H
Net assets released from restrictions - {68 509) - - (121.078) - (189.587) - (189.587) i
'
Change in temporarily restricied net assets 35,696 (46,460) - - (91,391) - (102,164} . (102,164) ;
Permanently restricted net assets:
Contributions - - - - 20,050 - 20,050 - 20.650
Change in permanctly restricted net assets - - - - 20,050 - 20,030 - 20,030
Change in net assets (deficir) (1,898.341) (3,070,835} 351 644 83,284 395,741 (14.692) (3,553,199 - (3,953,199
el assels (deficil), beginming of year (843,158) (20,782,564} (375.811) (2,768.973) 9.519.71% (100,890 (13,352,720 (75.000) (5427.720)
Net assels (deficit), end of year g 2,741,539 3 (23,853 390} $ 174,833 b (2,685,631} § 4.915.459 § {115,587 b3 (19,305,919 $ (75,000 § (1,380,919 H

See accompanying Independent Auditors” Report.
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Operating tevennes:
Net patient seryice revenues
Home health care revenue
Adult day health center services
Net patient revenves

FProvision for bad debts

Net patient revenues iess provision for bad debis

Member services and reatal income - Heffinan
SummerWood Community
Grants
Management fees
Other meome
MNet assets releaged from restriclions
wsed for operations
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Nursing services
Adniinsitation
Health benefits
Nutritional serviees
Medical services
Building operations
Depreciation and amortization
Environmental services
Pharmacy services
Provider tax
Interest expense
Rehabilitation services
Developraent
Social services
Life enrichment services
Health information management

Total operating expenses

(Loss} ncome fiom operations

Nem-operating gains (Josses):
Tnigzest and dividend income and distributions
Net realized gaing on investments
Change in cash surender value of life insurance
Denation expense
Gifts, bequests, and special events
Tnvestment fees
Total non-operating gaing

Excess of revenues over (under) expenses

Hebrew Health Care, Incorporated and Affiliates

Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (Deficit)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Hebrew Hebrew Conpecticwt Consolidated
Hebrew Honie and Hebrew Hebrew Heaith Care Geriatric Totals
Healih Care, Haospital, Comumunity Life Choices, Foundalion, Specialty FPrioe m Consolidated
Tnc. Incorporated Services, Inc. Tnc. Foe., (;I‘D\lE, P.C. Eliminatios. Elimisalions Tonls
- 38,669,209 -3 - 3 - b3 - § 1.050,564 ¥ 39,719.773 £ (414,999 & 39.304,774
- 31,772 7,024,159 - - - 7,035,931 - 7,055,931
- - 544.770 - - - 544,770 - 544,770
B 38,700,581 7,568,629 - B 1.650,564 47320974 14,999 46,908 475
- {349.99%) (16,258) - - - (366257 - {366,237y
- 38,350,982 7,552,671 - - 1,050,564 46,954,217 (414,999 46,539,218
- - - 4,157,367 - - 4,157,367 - 4,157,367
84,273 476,392 100,467 - - - 661,132 (469,392) 191,740
2,677,164 - - - - - 2,677,164 (2.677,164) -
12,004 2,143,752 4,211 325,609 - - 2,485,576 (2,042,130) 443 446
- 477795 - - 66,460 - 544,255 - 344,255
2,773,441 41,448,921 7,657,349 4,482,976 66,460 1,050,364 57479711 (5,603,685) 51,876,026
- 17,177,957 2,727,133 - - 104,876 20,009,966 (340,000) 19,669,966
2,775,205 4,519,141 4,182,213 1,903,744 - 209,829 14290252 4,538,220} 8,731,732
239,735 4,907,248 07,627 231,237 - 128,724 4,214,571 - 6,214,571
- 3,072,937 68,387 867,295 - - 4,008,619 (08,387) 3,946,232
- 2869,111 34,319 - - 513,457 3,416,887 (142,088) 3274798
- 1,426,733 60,605 521,009 - - 2,014,347 - 2,004,347
- 508,323 31,755 894 465 - - 1,832,543 - 1,832,543
- 1,513,280 2,670 193,168 - - 1.719,118 - 1,719,118
- 1,643,820 - - - - 1,643,820 - 1,643,820
- 1,433,893 - - - - 1,433,893 - 1,433,893
- 1,099,173 - 236,435 - - 1,335,628 - 1,335,628
- 1,049,245 48321 - - - 1,097,566 - 1,097,566
998,467 - - - - - 998,467 {469,380y 529075
- 442,324 38,701 - - - 481,025 - 481,025
- 358,132 - - - - 358,132 (24,598) 333534
- 172,891 = - - - 172.891 - 172381
4,014.197 4£2.602.208 7907731 4,847,373 - 1,650,896 61,028 425 13,603,683) 33.424.740
(1,240,756) (1,153,287 (250,402) (364,397 66,460 (606,332) (3,548,714 - (3,348,714)
- 4,631 - 2,598 154,982 - 152211 - 192,211
- 3,863 - 2,398 235,292 - 241,353 - 241,553
. - - - 1,333 - 21,333 - 21,333
- - - - (400,004) - {00,004 400,004 -
1,240,756 20 - - 29,338 - 1,330,114 (400,604) 930,110
- {430} - - (73,561) - {73,991y - (73,951}
1,240,756 8,084 - 4.996 57,380 - 1,311,216 = 1311.216
- (1.145208) % 250,407 % (359,401) % 123,840 § 606330 § (2237498 § - § (2,237,498)

See accompanying Independent Aunditors® Report.
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Unrestricted net assets (defisit):
Excess of revenues over (under) expenses
Net unrealized gains o invesouents
Equity transier to CGSG from HUC
Change in pension instroment

Change in mrestricted act assets (defioit)
Temporarily restricted et assets:
Contributions
Interest and dividend incame
Net realized and unrealized gaing
Net assets released from restrictions

Change in temporariy restricted net assets

Permancntly zestricted net asseis:
Conmihens

Change m permavently restricted net assets
Change in net assets (deficity
Net assets (deficit). beginning of year

Net assets {deficit), end of year

Hebrew Healtk Care, Incorporated and Affiliates

Consclidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (Deficit) (continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Hebrew Hebrew e i C il
Hebrew Heme and Healih Care Geratric Totuks
Henlth Care, Huospital, Foundation, Speciatty Prinr to Consolidated
Ing. Incorporated Inc. Group, P.C. Eliminatinns Eliminations Totals
3 - (1,145,203 173,840 § G06337  $ (837498 5 - $ (2237498
- 9246 431,77 - 449,637 - 9,637
(776,012) - - 776,012 - - -
- 1,902,140 - - 1,502, 140 - 1,902, 140
(776,012 766,183 535,537 162,680 114,279 - 114,279
- 10,720 4,339 - 15,035 - 15,059
- - 37178 - 37178 - 37,178
- - 114,418 - 114,418 - 14,418
- (477,795) (66.460), - (544.255) - (344.255)
- (467,075) 89,475 . (377,600 - (377.600)
- - 1,535 - 1,935 - 1933
- - 1,933 - 1,933 - 1,935
(776.012) 209108 646,957 169,680 (261,386) - (26],386)
{67,136) (21.081,672) 4.872.751 (270.570) (13091 334) {75,000} (15,166,334
£ {843.198%) (20,782 564) 9,512 718 3 (100,850 by {15,352, 720 3 {73,000 b3 {15.427,720)

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.




